
 
 

NOTICE OF THE  
SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

 

The special meeting of the Committee of the Whole is scheduled for  
Tuesday, July 20, 2021, beginning at 6:15 p.m. 

At Tinley Park Fire Station No. 46, 17355 S. 68th Court, Tinley Park, IL 60477 
 

A copy of the agenda for this meeting is attached hereto and  
can be found at www.tinleypark.org. 

 

 
NOTICE - MEETING MODIFICATION DUE TO COVID-19 

 

As of June 11, 2021, Governor Pritzker moved Illinois to Phase 5. Under Phase 5, all sectors of the 
economy can resume at regular capacity with new safety guidelines and procedures. Pursuant to the 
Illinois Department of Commerce & Economic Opportunity’s Guidelines, it is recommended that any 
individual appearing in-person who is not fully vaccinated wear a face-covering to cover their nose 
and mouth. 

Meetings are open to the public, but members of the public may continue to submit their 
public comments or requests to speak telephonically in advance of the meeting to 
clerksoffice@tinleypark.org or place requests in the Drop Box at the Village Hall by noon on 
July 20, 2021. Please note, written comments will not be read aloud during the meeting. A 
copy of the Village’s Temporary Public Participation Rules & Procedures is attached to this 
Notice. 
 

Kristin A. Thirion 
Clerk 
Village of Tinley Park  
  

http://www.tinleypark.org/
mailto:clerksoffice@tinleypark.org


 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 

TEMPORARY PUBLIC PARTICIPATION RULES & PROCEDURES 
 

 

As stated in Gubernatorial Executive Order 2020-07 issued on March 16, 2020 and Gubernatorial 
Executive Order 2020-10 issued on March 20, 2020, both extended by Gubernatorial Executive Order 
2020-18 issued on April 1, 2020, all public gatherings of more than ten people are prohibited. In-person 
public participation is not defined as an essential activity. 

The Mayor of Tinley Park is issuing the following rules for all Village Board and other public meetings in 
order to promote social distancing as required by the aforementioned Executive Orders and the 
requirements of the Open Meetings Act: 

 

Written Comments 

After publication of the agenda, email comments to clerksoffice@tinleypark.org. When providing written 
comments to be included as public participation at a public meeting, clearly identify the following in the 
subject line:  

• The date of the meeting; 
• The type of meeting for the written comments (e.g. Village Board meeting, Zoning Board of 

Appeals meeting, Plan Commission meeting, etc.); 
• Name and any other identifying information the participant wishes to convey to the public body; 
• The category of public participation (e.g., Receive Comments from the Public, Agenda Items, etc.); 
• For specific Agenda Items, identify and include the specific agenda item number; 
• The entire content of the comments will be subject to public release. The Village of Tinley Park is 

under no obligation to redact any information. 
 

The contents of all comments will be provided to the relevant public body for their review. Written 
comments will not be read aloud during the meeting. If you wish to publicly address the public body, 
you may request to participate via teleconference as described below. 

 

Comments must be submitted by 12:00 pm on the day of the meeting. However, it is strongly 
recommended that comments be emailed not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting so 
the appropriate Board members, Commissioners, Board members, and Committee members have 
sufficient time to review the comments prior to the meeting. 

 

 

 



 

Live Public Participation During Meeting 

After publication of the agenda, those wishing to participate in a live telephone call option at a public 
meeting must register by 12:00 pm on the day of the meeting.  A Village representative will call the 
participant at the relevant portion of the meeting and the participant will be allowed to participate 
telephonically at the meeting. To participate in a live telephone call during the meeting, a request shall be 
submitted by email to clerksoffice@tinleypark.org. The following information must be included the 
subject line:  

• The date of the meeting; 
• The type of meeting for the written comments (e.g. Village Board meeting, Zoning Board of 

Appeals meeting, Plan Commission meeting, etc.); 
• Name and any other identifying information the participant wishes to convey to the public body; 
• The category of public participation (e.g., Receive Comments from the Public, Agenda Items, etc.); 

and 
• For specific Agenda Items, identify and include the specific agenda item number. 

If the participant provides an email address, they will receive a confirmation email that their request has 
been logged. If the participant provides an email address and does not receive a confirmation email, they 
may call (708) 444-5000 during regular business hours to confirm the application was received. 

Upon successful registration, the participant’s name will be placed on an internal Village list. On the date 
and during relevant portion of the meeting, the participant will be called by a Village representative. The 
Village representative will call the provided telephone number and allow the phone to ring not more than 
four (4) times. If the call is not answered within those four (4) rings, the call will be terminated and the 
Village representative will call the next participant on the list. 

The public comment should be presented in a manner as if the participant is in attendance at the meeting.  
At the start of the call, the participant should provide their name and any other information the 
participant wishes to convey. For comments regarding Agenda Items, identify and include the specific 
agenda item number. The participant should try to address all comments to the public body as a whole 
and not to any member thereof. Repetitive comments are discouraged. The total comment time for any 
single participant is three (3) minutes. Further time up to an additional three (3) minutes may be granted 
by motion. A participant may not give his or her allotted minutes to another participant to increase that 
person's allotted time. 

 
 



 
NOTICE - VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special Committee of the Whole Meeting of the 
Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, July 20, 2021, 
beginning at 6:15 p.m. at the Tinley Park Fire Station No. 46, 17355 S. 68th Court, Tinley Park, 
Illinois 60477. 

 
THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
 

2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE MEETING HELD ON JUNE 29, 2021. 

 
3. CONSIDER PETE’S FRESH MARKET DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 
4. CONSIDER A CLASS 8 REQUEST FOR IMAGINE ASPEN, LLC, 6851 167TH 

STREET. 
 

5. CONSIDER A CLASS 8 REQUEST FOR MIRA REAL ESTATE, LLC, 6775 
PROSPERI DRIVE. 

 
6. CONSIDER ELECTRICAL AGGREGATION PROGRAM. 

 
7. CONSIDER EXCEPTIONS TO THE SECTION 2.11 OF THE PERSONNEL 

MANUAL – DUAL CAPACITY EMPLOYMENT. 
 

8. CONSIDER HYDRANT PAINTING CONTRACT. 
 

9. CONSIDER POST 3 LIFT STATION PUMP REPLACEMENT. 
 

10. CONSIDER PURCHASE OF SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS 
BOTTLES (SCBA). 
 

11. RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK   



 

MINUTES 
Meeting of the Committee of the Whole 

June 29, 2021 – 6:45 p.m. 
Village Hall of Tinley Park – Council Chambers 

16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 

 
President Pro Tem Brennan called the special meeting of the Committee of the Whole on June 29, 2021, to order at 
6:47 p.m.  
 
At this time, President Pro Tem Brennan stated this meeting is being conducted pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s 
disaster proclamation and Public Act 101-0640, which amends requirements of the Open Meetings Act due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. President Pro Tem Brennan introduced ground rules for effective and clear conduct of 
Village business. 
 
Clerk Thirion called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following: 
 

Members Present: M. Glotz, Village President 
   K. Thirion, Village Clerk 
   W. Brady, Village Trustee 
   W. Brennan, Village Trustee 
   D. Galante, Village Trustee 
   D. Mahoney, Village Trustee 
   M. Mueller, Village Trustee 
   C. Sullivan, Village Trustee  
   
Members Absent:  
    
Staff Present:  D. Niemeyer, Village Manager 
   P. Carr, Assistant Village Manager 
   K. Clarke, Community Development Director 
   L. Godette, Deputy Village Clerk 
   J. Urbanski, Public Works Director 
   H. Lipman, Assistant to the Village Manager 
   P. Connelly, Village Attorney 

      
  Others Present:   
 
Item #2 - CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE MEETING HELD ON JUNE 15, 2021 – Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee 
Brady, to approve the minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on June 15, 2021. Vote by roll call. 
Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem 
Brennan declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #3 – RECEIVE CANNABIS UPDATE – Kimberly Clarke, Community Development Director, presented 
the update. With the potential of more licenses to be issued in the next month by the State, Staff is reexamining 
Village zoning code to determine if changes can be made to make it easier for a dispensary to locate in the Village. 
 
The Village adopted Ordinance 2020-O-038 which amended the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance to define and 
regulate Adult Cannabis Dispensing Organizations as a Special Use in the B-2 & B-3 Commercial Zoning Districts 
along with conditions to be considered within those districts. Conditions that are currently in place that impact the 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

location of a dispensary, typical dispensary specifications (based on conversations with dispensary owners), and 
locations in the Village that meet the current Ordinance and potential modifications to the zoning code were 
presented. Changes to the code will be discussed during a Plan Commission meeting. 
 
Trustee Mueller stated he is in favor of removing the standalone requirement as well as allowing use in the ORI/M-
1/MU-1 and B-1 Zoning Districts while maintaining the residential distance requirement. Trustee Brady concurred. 
 
Trustee Sullivan asked if there are schools near the B2 & B3 districts. Ms. Clarke stated if there are, State law would 
prevent a dispensary from applying.  
 
Item #4 – CONSIDER ROUTE 45 UTILITY EASEMENT – Ms. Clarke presented the Route 45 easements. As 
part of an economic development initiative, the Village is finalizing the engineering for the extension of utilities 
along the Route 45 corridor at 183rd Street in the hopes of spurring development in this area. Despite the delays 
COVID has created on future commercial development in the area, the extension of utilities remains a priority so 
the infrastructure is available once the economy supports development in this area again. This is consistent with the 
original goal for the utility extension; to act as an inducement for development. 
 
Loyola University Medicine has agreed to partner with the Village by entering into a Temporary Construction and 
Perpetual Utility easement on both of their properties. The easements will grant permission for the Village to 
construct a watermain extension from 179th Street to 183rd Street and construct a permanent lift station. Without this 
partnership, the Village would be unable to move forward with this critical capital improvement project which will 
serve this area for future development. 
 
The Village will enter into two agreements with Loyola for the two properties they own that will be needed for this 
project.  
 
Agreement 1-Property located at 17901 96th Avenue: 
• This agreement grants the Village a perpetual 10’ wide utility easement along the frontage of the parcel that abuts 

the south side of 179th Street. 
• The Village is to complete the water and sewer lines by December 31, 2021, and restoration by March 31, 2022. 

The Village may be granted a reasonable extension period for unforeseen circumstances such as uncontrollable 
events experienced by a broad population, i.e., pandemics, war, or extreme weather that is not the fault of Grantee 
and that makes it difficult or impossible for Grantee to carry out normal business. This would not include delays 
caused by the contractor, material supply, or anything else other than what is outlined above. 

• Village will pay $300 for the required removal of the tenant’s crop located within the temporary construction 
easement and utility easement. 

• Grantee will reimburse Grantor's tenant $18.75 per square foot for any and all other costs incurred by the Grantor's 
tenant to his crop due to damage that resulted from the Project.  

• This property is currently zoned B-3 (General Business and Commercial). The agreement acknowledges a medical 
clinic and medical office use is permitted in this zoning district. 

• The agreement acknowledges the Village will support Loyola’s actions in obtaining ingress/egress off of 179th 
Street or Chopin Drive. Anything the Village has authority over will be reviewed and approved through the Site 
Plan process. 

 
Agreement 2-Property located at 18100 96th Avenue: 
• This agreement grants the Village a perpetual 75’x75’ utility easement on the property for the construction of a 

lift station. 
• The Village is to complete the construction of the lift station on May 31, 2022, and restoration by June 30, 2022. 

The Village may be granted a reasonable extension period for unforeseen circumstances such as uncontrollable 
events experienced by a broad population, i.e., pandemics, war, or extreme weather that is not the fault of Grantee 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

and that makes it difficult or impossible for Grantee to carry out normal business. This would not include delays 
caused by the contractor, material supply, or anything else other than what is outlined above. 

• Village will pay $300 for the required removal of the tenant’s crop located within the temporary construction 
easement and utility easement. 

• Grantee will reimburse Grantor's tenant $18.75 per square foot for any and all other costs incurred by the Grantor's 
tenant to his crop due to damage that resulted from the Project. 

• This property is currently zoned B-3 (General Business and Commercial). The agreement acknowledges a medical 
clinic and medical office use is permitted in this zoning district. 

 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Sullivan to recommend the Route 45 utility easements 
be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. 
Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Brennan declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #5 – CONSIDER APPOINTMENT OF ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND (IMRF) 
REPRESENTATIVE – David Niemeyer, Village Manager, presented the IMRF representative appointment. In 
accordance with IMRF rules, an authorized agent must be appointed by the Village Board to act for the Village of 
Tinley Park concerning its participation in IMRF. Due to the retirement of Brad Bettenhausen, a Resolution has 
been drafted naming Human Resources Director, Angela Arrigo, as the authorized agent on behalf of the Village. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Sullivan, seconded by Trustee Brady, to recommend the appointment of an IMRF 
representative be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, 
Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Brennan declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #6 – CONSIDER ELECTRICAL AGGREGATION OPTIONS – Hannah Lipman, Assistant to the Village 
Manager, presented the electrical aggregation options. Electric aggregation renewal options were discussed at the 
June 1st Committee of the Whole and Village Board meetings. The Board provided direction to stay with the current 
supplier, MC2, for a three-year contract, at the EPA level of green energy. The Village would also receive $60,000 
per year as a Civic Contribution from MC2. 
 
The Village’s consultant, NIMEC, notified the Village of changes at the State level that will directly impact program 
choices. One of the key components of electricity costs is a regulated cost called Capacity. This charge is one of the 
regulated costs included in the energy rate that suppliers quote to their clients. Capacity ensures the electric grids 
in Illinois have sufficient availability of power during peak load periods. These Capacity dollars are paid to suppliers 
to reserve a portion of their generation should the grid managers need the generation to meet unusually high demand. 
 
Revised Options are a one-year contract with either Eligo Energy or MC2. Eligo would commit to a $70,000 Civic 
Contribution. MC2 would commit to a $30,000 Civic Contribution. 
 
Trustee Mueller stated he would prefer to stay with MC2. 
 
President Pro Tem Brennan stated he would prefer to postpone the decision. Mr. Niemeyer stated the decision would 
need to be made at the July 20, 2021, Village Board meeting. 
 
Item #7 – CONSIDER VILLAGE HISTORIAN APPOINTMENT – Mr. Niemeyer presented the Local 
Historian appointment. Brad Bettenhausen is retiring as Treasurer on June 30, 2021. Mr. Bettenhausen is President 
of the Tinley Park Historical Society and knows as much about the history of Tinley Park as anyone else in the 
community. This appointment will allow Mr. Bettenhausen to continue his research on Tinley Park’s history which 
will benefit the Village by having its history memorialized. Mr. Bettenhausen will have to ability to access records 
with the Manager’s Office approval. 
 
President Pro Tem Brennan thanked Mr. Bettenhausen for his years of service and dedication to the Village. 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to recommend the Village Historian 
Appointment be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, 
Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Brennan declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #8 – CONSIDER AMENDMENT TO COMMITTEE ORDINANCE 30.43 & 30.40 AND CONSENT 
AGENDA ORDINANCE 30.005 – Mr. Niemeyer presented the code changes which will change items allowed on 
the consent agenda which are more in line with standard municipal practices, as well as the Village’s committee 
structure. 
• Standing Committee meetings no longer to be held on specific dates, but on an as-needed basis. 
• Update the Code to include current standing committees. Liaison relationships would be as appointed by the 

Village President with support of the Board, without naming assignments of specific commissions/committees. 
• Bids up to $100,000 to be allowed on the consent agenda. Bids will continue to be reviewed at the Committee 

level. 
• Currently an item cannot be placed on the consent agenda unless it is reviewed at a committee meeting held on a 

previous night. As committee meetings will no longer be held on separate nights, this provision should be 
eliminated. 

• Add the ability for the Village President to remove items from the consent agenda during a meeting. Currently, 
only trustees may remove an item. 

 
Trustee Galante asked about scheduling Committee meetings and how Commission liaisons will be appointed. Mr. 
Niemeyer responded while more Committee of the Whole meetings have been called so all Trustees may be active, 
individual Committee meetings may still be called. Liaisons will be appointed so the most appropriate Board 
member is aligned with the Commission. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mahoney, seconded by Trustee Brady, to recommend the amendment to Committee 
Ordinance 30.43 & 30.40 and Consent Agenda Ordinance 30.005 be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll 
call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem 
Brennan declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #9 – CONSIDER PROPOSAL FROM J & J NEWELL CONTRACT FOR TIF-FUNDED SIDEWALK 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR SOUTH STREET AND 174TH STREET – John Urbanski, Public Works Director, 
presented the proposal. The Village of Tinley Park requested J&J Newell to prepare and submit a quote to remove 
various sections of sidewalk and concrete stairs along the north side of South Street and the south side of 174th 
Street. This work extends from Oak Park Avenue to 66th Court on South Street and from 67th Court to limits of the 
road improvements for The Boulevard on 174th Street. The concrete improvements are to eliminate trip hazards and 
damaged sidewalk sections, replace aged, cracked steps to the Metra Station, and add code-compliant concrete steps 
to the sidewalk in front of 17407 174th Street. 
 
The proposal from J&J Newell is in the amount of $25,090.60. The unit prices will match the prices currently in 
place as part of the Village’s current contract for the Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mahoney, seconded by Trustee Sullivan, to recommend a proposal from J & J Newell 
for TIF-funded sidewalk improvements for South Street and 174th Street be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote 
by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro 
Tem Brennan declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #10 – CONSIDER EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) CONTRACT EXTENSION – Pat 
Carr, Assistant Village Manager/Director, EM and 911 Communications, presented the contract extension. Staff 
completed a review of the past 3 years of service with Kurtz/AMR Ambulance and found it to have satisfactorily 
met the requirements for both program/service and cost options. Based on the original contract, there is the option 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

of two (2), two (2) year contract extensions. It was recommended the Village combine the extensions to extend the 
contract for four (4) years to maximum costs and service efficiencies. 
 
Based on original responses three (3) years ago, Kurtz/AMR was the best choice based on cost and service options. 
Since 2018, the Kurtz/AMR program has saved the village over $1.5 million that was redirected to various public 
safety programs. 
 

Pricing Comparison 
  2018 Summary of the three (3) year costs: 

Base Proposal 2018-2021 3 Year 
Metro  $2,746, 893 
Trace  $2,141,546 
Kurtz  $1,313,955 

 
  2021 Summary of Costs: 

Kurtz\AMR Extension Proposal 4 Year 
2021  $518,500.00 
2022 $534,055.00 
2023 $551,411.79 
2024 $570,711.20 
 $2,174,677.99 

 
Kurtz was also outstanding during the vaccination center stand-up at the Tinley Park Convention Center and the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Trustee Galante stated she feels it is important to continue to review bids. She also asked if Kurtz is still having 
employment issues and if pay rates will be increased. Mr. Carr replied, there is a nationwide shortage of EMS staff; 
this is not a problem exclusive to Kurtz. Labor costs have increased over the past three (3) years with the current 
average being between $47-50K. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to recommend the extension of the EMS 
contract be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, 
Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Brennan declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #11 – RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC –  
President Pro Tem Brennan asked if there were any comments from the public. There were none. 
 
Laura Godette, Deputy Village Clerk, stated there was no written comment or request to speak telephonically. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adjourn the Committee of the Whole. Vote 
by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro 
Tem Brennan declared the meeting adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
dm 









 
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
NO. 2021-R-068 

 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING (TIF) REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITHIN THE 159TH AND 

HARLEM TIF DISTRICT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 163RD 
& HARLEM LLC FOR PROPERTY AT 16300 S HARLEM AVENUE. 

(PETE’S FRESH MARKET) 
 

 
 

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT 
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
WILLIAM P. BRADY 

WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 
DIANE M. GALANTE 

DENNIS P. MAHONEY 
MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
COLLEN M. SULLIVAN 

Board of Trustees 
 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys 

200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606 
  

  



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-068 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TAX INCREMENT 

FINANCING (TIF) REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITHIN THE 159TH AND 
HARLEM TIF DISTRICT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 163RD 

& HARLEM LLC FOR PROPERTY AT 16300 HARLEM AVENUE. 
(PETE’S FRESH MARKET) 

 
WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 

provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) and 163RD & Harlem LLC (the 
“Developer”) have negotiated and now desire to enter into a Tax Increment Financing 
Redevelopment Agreement (“Agreement”) pertaining to the economic development and 
revitalization of certain areas of the Village located within the 159th and Harlem TIF District (“TIF 
District”), attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/8-1-2.5 of the Illinois Municipal Code in conjunction 

with 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. (“TIF Act”) the Village is authorized to appropriate and expend 
funds necessary for economic development and revitalization of real property within said TIF 
District; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Village and the Developer, pursuant to said Agreement, 

to promote the economic development and revitalization of certain real property located at 16300 
Harlem Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois, PIN: 27-24-202-020-0000 and 27-24-202-021-0000; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 

Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of said Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to enter into this Agreement with the Developer; and  

   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1:  The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact as if 
said recitals were fully set forth herein. 
 



SECTION 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 
that it is in the best interest of the Village and its residents that the aforesaid Agreement between 
the Village and the Developer, as set forth in Exhibit 1, be entered into and the Village President 
is hereby authorized to execute and memorialize said Agreement, subject to review and revision 
as to form by the Village Attorney.  
 
SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
SECTION 4: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Resolution in 
pamphlet form, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 
 
PASSED THIS 20th day of July, 2021. 
 
AYES:              

NAYS:              

ABSENT:              

APPROVED THIS 20th day of July, 2021. 

 

       ____________________________________ 
                      VILLAGE PRESIDENT 
ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 
          VILLAGE CLERK  



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
COUNTY OF COOK  ) SS 
COUNTY OF WILL  ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Resolution No. 2021-R-068, “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 

A TAX INCREMENT FINANCING (TIF) REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITHIN THE 

159TH AND HARLEM TIF DISTRICT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 

163RD & HARLEM, LLC FOR PROPERTY AT 16300 S. HARLEM AVENUE” which was 

adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on the 20th day of 

July, 2021.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of  

the Village of Tinley Park this 20th day of July, 2021. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 
                                            VILLAGE CLERK 
 





























































































  

Date:   July 20, 2021 
To:   Committee of the Whole 
CC:   David Niemeyer, Village Manager 
   Kimberly Clarke, Community Development Director 
From:                             Priscilla Cordero, Business Development Manager 
Subject:   6851 W. 167th Street- Class 8-Imagine Aspen, LLC 

BACKGROUND: 
Imagine Aspen, LLC (the “Applicant”) is the contract-purchaser of the site at 6851 W. 167th Street 
(PIN: 28-30-103-002-0000). The property consists of a one story, 6,733 square foot office building which 
has been vacant since July of 2019.  The applicant proposes to invest $400,000 to retrofit the interior 
to build out 23 suite style salons, install a sprinkler system, as well as add some landscaping 
around the building exterior. 
 
Imagine Aspen, LLC is managed by Cynthia Payne, Patrick Reilly and Patsey Reilly. Ms. Payne has 45 
years of retail experience, according to the request submitted by their attorney, and is co-owner of a 
25-suite salon building in Plainfield, Illinois which is currently fully leased since opening last year. As 
a result of its success, a second location is under construction in Plainfield, Illinois and is expected to 
be open in September of 2021. It is expected that 19 full-time jobs and 8 part-time jobs will be created 
as a result of this project. Further, the applicant will reoccupy a vacant building and improve the site 
by adding a sprinkler system and landscaping to the exterior. 
 

 



DISCUSSION 

The Applicant is requesting a Class 8 Incentive on this site to effectively lower their tax assessment 
from the commercial rate of 25% to the residential rate of 10%. The property is located in Bremen 
Township, which is one of the Townships the Cook County Assessor’s Office has designated as a 
certified Class 8 area. The property has been vacant for two years which is why it is eligible however, 
it should be noted that recently, the Cook County Board adopted a Tax Incentive Ordinance amending 
Sec. 74-62 through 74-63 of the Cook County Code, which decreases the vacancy requirement for a 
property from 24 months to 12 months and eliminates the need for a “special circumstances” finding. 
 
The project as present is in line with the Village of Tinley Park’s incentive Policy as follows: 
 
Incentive Policy Checklist 

1. The developer will file the Cook County forms, plans to be a long-term owner/investor, 
and plans to comply with Village and County obligations of the Class 8 Incentive Program. 

2. The project will create at least 25 jobs as outlined in section B-1 of the incentive policy. 
 

Benefits 
1. The project will be an enhancement to the Village by allowing the Applicant to occupy a 

previously vacant building. It will also result in an increase of 27 jobs when fully 
operational. 

 
REQUEST 
The Economic and Commercial Commission (ECC) reviewed the application at its July 12, 2021 
meeting and voted 7-0 to recommend approval of the Class 8 request. Staff requests for the Committee 
of the Whole to move this request forward for consideration at the Village Board meeting held later 
this evening.  









































1 
 

  

Date:   July 20, 2021 
To:   Committee of the Whole 
CC:   David Niemeyer, Village Manager 
   Kimberly Clarke, Community Development Director 
From:                             Priscilla Cordero, Business Development Manager 
Subject:   6775 Prosperi Drive- Class 8-MIRA Real Estate, LLC 

BACKGROUND: 
Dr. Chris Higgins of MIRA Real Estate, LLC (the “Applicant”) has recently purchased the site at 
6775 Prosperi Drive (PIN: 31-06-400-002-0000). The property consists of a 63,124 square foot building 
which was formerly occupied by a not-for-profit organization. The owner proposes to invest 
$6,000,000 in improvements to the building in order to operate a MIRA Neuro-Behavioral Health 
Center for Children and Adolescents that will consist of a 30-bed acute care psychiatric hospital.    
 
Dr. Chris Higgins has identified a need in the community for acute care resources for youth struggling 
with mental health issues. It is expected that 30 full-time jobs and 15 part-time jobs will be created as a 
result of this project. When fully operational, that number will increase to 50-70 jobs including 
psychiatrists, psychologists, nurses, general office staff and maintenance staff. Construction is expected 
to commence summer of 2021 with completion estimated 6-8 months thereafter. 

 



2 
 

 
Per the estimates prepared by MIRA’s attorney, the property, once fully renovated, is estimated to be 
valued at approximately $8.5 million and would generate approximately $450,000 a year in taxes with 
the incentive. This property was previously owned by a non-profit and therefore, exempt from paying 
property tax.   
 
DISCUSSION 

The Applicant is requesting a Class 8 Incentive on this site in order to make their project feasible   The 
property is located in Rich Township, which is one of the Townships the Cook County Assessor’s 
Office has designated as a certified Class 8 area. The property has not been vacant for two full years 
however, it should be noted that recently, the Cook County Board adopted a Tax Incentive Ordinance 
amending Sec. 74-62 through 74-63 of the Cook County Code, which decreases the vacancy 
requirement for a property from 24 months to 12 months and eliminates the need for a “special 
circumstances” finding. In the alternative, the project would qualify under “substantial rehabiliation” 
and the applicant would move forward with this option. 
 
The project as presented is in line with the Village’s incentive policy as follows: 

 
Incentive Policy Checklist 

1. The developer will file the Cook County forms, plans to be a long-term owner/investor, 
and plans to comply with Village and County obligations of the Class 8 Incentive Program. 

2. The project will create at least 25 jobs as outlined in section B-1 of the incentive policy. 
3. This project meets the Minimum Capital Investment Policy requirement of at least $1 

million.  

Benefits 
1. The project will be an enhancement to the Village by allowing the Applicant to improve 

the property while also allowing the property to be added to the tax rolls increasing tax 
revenue for the Village. It will also result in an increase of 50-70 permanent jobs when fully 
operational. 

 
REQUEST 
The Economic and Commercial Commission (ECC) reviewed the application at its July 12, 2021 
meeting and voted 7-0 to recommend approval of the Class 8 request. Staff requests for the Committee 
of the Whole to move this item forward for consideration at the Village Board later this evening. 



June 29, 2021

Ms. Priscilla Y. Cordero
Business Development Manager
Village of Tinley Park

Re: MIRA Real Estate, LLC -- Class 8 Application
6775 Prosperi Drive
Tinley Park, IL 60477
PIN:  31-06-400-002
Rich Township

Dear Priscilla:

Per our discussions, and on behalf of MIRA Real State, LLC (MIRA), enclosed
for your review and the Village’s approval is my client’s revised Cook County
Class 8 Property Tax Incentive Application.  The application seeks approval
primarily based on re-occupying an abandoned property. Based on the recent
amendments to the Cook County Classification Ordinance, a special
circumstances finding is not required.  In the alternative, my client seeks approval
based on substantial rehabilitation.

Please add this revised application to the materials I previously submitted to you.
If you need any additional information, please call, or email me at your
convenience.

Kevin B. Hynes

Enclosure



June 29, 2021

Ms. Priscilla Y. Cordero
Business Development Manager
Village of Tinley Park

Re: MIRA Real Estate, LLC -- Class 8 Application
6775 Prosperi Drive
Tinley Park, IL 60477
PIN:  31-06-400-002
Rich Township

Dear Priscilla:

Per our discussions, and on behalf of MIRA Real State, LLC (MIRA), enclosed
for your review and the Village’s approval is my client’s revised Cook County
Class 8 Property Tax Incentive Application.  The application seeks approval
primarily based on re-occupying an abandoned property. Based on the recent
amendments to the Cook County Classification Ordinance, a special
circumstances finding is not required.  In the alternative, my client seeks approval
based on substantial rehabilitation.

Please add this revised application to the materials I previously submitted to you.
If you need any additional information, please call, or email me at your
convenience.

Sincerely,

Kevin B. Hynes

Enclosure



COOK COUNTY ASSESSOR S OFFICE
118 NORTH CLARK STREET, CHICAGO, IL 60602

PHONE: 312.443.7550 FAX: 312.603.6584
WWW.COOKCOUNTYASSESSOR.COM

CLASS 8
ELIGIBILITY APPLICATION

Carefully review the Class 8 Eligibility Bulletin before completing this Application. For assistance, please
-7529. This application, a filing

fee of $500.00, and supporting documentation (except drawings and surveys) must be filed as follows:

This application must be filed PRIOR TO the commencement of New Construction or PRIOR TO the
commencement of Substantial Rehabilitation Activities or PRIOR TO the commencement of Reoccupation
of Abandoned Property.

Applicant Information

Name: ___________________________________ Telephone: ( _____ ) _________________

Company: _______________________________________________________________________

Address: _________________________________________________________________________

City: ________________________________ State: _____ Zip Code: ________________

Email: __________________________________________________________________________

Contact Person (if different than the Applicant)

Name: ___________________________________ Telephone: ( _ ) ____

Company: _______________________________________________________________________

Address: _________________________________________________________________________

City: ________________________________ State: _______ Zip Code: ________________

Email: _____________________________________________

Property Description (per PIN)

If you are applying for more than three different PINs, please submit the additional PIN information in an
attachment.

Street Address: (1) _____________________________________________________________

Permanent Real Estate Index Number: _________________________________

(2) _____________________________________________________________

Permanent Real Estate Index Number: _________________________________

(3) _____________________________________________________________

Permanent Real Estate Index Number: _________________________________

City: ________________________________ ZIP: ________

Township:____________________________ Existing Class: ___________________________

CONTROL NUMBER



Page 2 of 8

Class 8 application is based upon the location of the property in:
____ 1) An area which has been certified for Class 8

____ 2) One of the following townships:   Bloom, Bremen, Calumet, Rich, or Thornton

____ 3) Property obtained through the Cook County Tax Reactivation Program

Identification of Person Having an Interest in the Property

Attach a complete list of all owners, developers, occupants and other interested parties (including all
beneficial owners of a land trust) identified by names and addresses, and the nature and extent of their
interest.

Property Use

Type of Development: Industrial   or   Commercial   (Please circle)

General Description of Proposed Property Usage _______________ ___________________________

Attach a detail description of the precise nature and extent of the intended use of the subject property,
specifying in the case of the multiple uses the relative percentages of each use.

Attach legal description, site dimensions and square footage and building dimensions and square footage.

brochures, advertising material, leases, photographs, etc.

Nature of Development

Indicate nature of proposed development by checking the appropriate space:

[ ] New Construction (Read and Complete Section A)

[ ] Substantial Rehabilitation (Read and Complete Section A)
Incentive only applied to the market value attributable to the rehabilitation

[ ] Occupation of Abandoned Property - No Special Circumstance
(Read and Complete Section B)

[ ] Occupation of Abandoned Property - With Special Circumstance
(Read and Complete Section C)

[ ] Occupation of Abandoned Property - (TEERM Supplemental Application)
(Read and Complete Section C)



Page 3 of 8

SECTION A (NEW CONSTRUCTION/SUBSTANTIAL REHABILITATION)

If the proposed development consists of New Construction or Substantial Rehabilitation, provide the
following information:

Estimated date of construction
Commencement (excluding demolition, if any): __________________________

Estimated date of construction completion: _____________________________

Attach copies of the following:

1. Specific description of the proposed New Construction or Substantial Rehabilitation

2. Current Plat of Survey for subject property

3. 1st floor plan or schematic drawings

4. Building permits, wrecking permits and occupancy permits (including date of issuance)

5. Complete description of the cost and extent of the Substantial Rehabilitation or New Construction

affidavits, etc)



Page 4 of 8

SECTION B (ABANDONED PROPERTY WITH NO SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES)

If the proposed development consists of the reoccupation of abandoned property, purchased for value,
complete (1) and (2) below:

1. Was the subject property vacant and unused for at least continuous months prior to the purchase
for value?

[ ] YES [ ] NO

When and by whom was the subject property last occupied prior to the purchase for value?

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

Attach copies of the following documents:

(a) Sworn statements from person having personal knowledge attesting to the fact and the
duration of vacancy and abandonment

(b) Information (such as statements of utility companies) which demonstrate that the property
was vacant and unused and indicate duration of such vacancy

2. Application must be made to the Assessor prior to occupation:

Estimated date of reoccupation: _________________________
Date of Purchase: _________________________
Name of purchaser: _________________________
Name of seller: _________________________
Relationship of purchaser to seller: _________________________

Attach copies of the following documents:
(a) Sale Contract
(b) Closing Statement
(c) Recorded Deed
(d) Assignment of Beneficial Interest
(e) Real Estate Transfer Declaration



Page 5 of 8

SECTION C (SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES)

If the applicant is seeking special circumstances to establish that the property was abandoned for purposes
of the Incentive where there was a purchase for value, but the period of abandonment prior to purchase
was less than 24 months, complete section (1).

If the applicant is seeking special circumstances to establish that the property was abandoned for purposes
of the Incentive where there was no purchase for value, but the period of abandonment prior to the
application 24 continuous months or greater, complete section (2).

If the applicant is seeking special circumstances to establish that the property was abandoned for purposes
of the Incentive where there was no purchase for value, but the period of abandonment prior to the
application was greater than 12 continuous months and less than 24 continuous month, complete
section (2) and the TEERM Supplemental Application.

1. How long was the period of abandonment prior to the purchase for value?  ________________

When and by whom was the subject property last occupied prior to the purchase for value?

 ___________________________________________________________________________

 ___________________________________________________________________________

Attach copies of the following documents:

(a) Sworn statements from persons having personal knowledge attesting to the fact and the
duration of the vacancy and abandonment

(b) Information (such as statements of utility companies) which demonstrate that the property
was vacant and unused and indicate duration of vacancy

(c)
the municipality, or the County Board, if located in an unincorporated area. Also include the
ordinance or resolution from the Board of Commissioners of Cook County stating its
approval for less than 24-month abandonment period.

Application must be made to the Assessor prior to the commencement of reoccupation of the
abandoned property.

 Estimated date of Reoccupation:  ____________________________
 Date of purchase:  ____________________________
 Name of purchaser:  ____________________________
 Name of seller:  ____________________________
 Relationship of purchaser to seller:  ____________________________

Attach copies of the following documents:
(a) Sale Contract
(b) Closing Statement
(c) Recorded Deed
(d) Assignment of Beneficial Interest
(e) Real Estate Transfer Declaration



Page 6 of 8

2. How long has the subject property been unused?

[ ]  24 or greater continuous months (Eligible for Special Circumstance)

[ ]  12 continuous months but less than 24 continuous months (Eligible for Special
  Circumstance under TEERM) - Complete TEERM Supplemental Application

[ ] Less than 12 continuous months (Not Eligible for Special Circumstance)

When and by whom was the subject property last occupied prior to the filing of this application?

 ___________________________________________________________________________

 ___________________________________________________________________________

Attach copies of the following documents:

(a) Sworn statements from persons having personal knowledge attesting to the fact and the
duration of the vacancy and abandonment

(b) Information (such as statements of utility companies) which demonstrate that the property
was vacant and unused and indicate duration of vacancy

(c)
the municipality, or the County Board, if located in an unincorporated area. Also include the
ordinance or resolution from the Board of Commissioners of Cook County stating its
approval for lack of a purchase for value.

Application must be made to Assessor prior to the commencement of reoccupation of the abandoned
property.

 Estimated date of reoccupation:  ___________________________



Page 7 of 8

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

How many construction jobs will be created as a result of this development? ___________

How many new permanent full-time and part-time employees do you now employ in Cook County?

Full-time: _________ Part-time: ________

How many new permanent full-time jobs will be created as a result of this proposed development?

_____

How many new permanent part-time jobs will be created as a result of this proposed development?

_____

LOCAL APPROVAL

A certified copy of a resolution or ordinance from the municipality in which the real estate is located (or
the County Board, if the real estate is located in an unincorporated area) should accompany this
Application. The ordinance or resolution must expressly state that the municipality supports and consents
to this Class 8 Application and that it finds Class 8 necessary for development to occur on the subject
property. If a resolution is unavailable at the time the application is filed, a letter from the municipality or
the County Board, as the case may be, stating that a resolution or ordinance supporting the Incentive has
been requested may be filed with this application instead. If the applicant is seeking to apply based on the

municipality, in addition to obtaining a letter from the municipality confirming that a resolution or
ordinance supporting the Incentive has been requested, the applicant must file a letter from the County
Board confirming that a resolution validating a municipal finding of special circumstances has been
requested. If, at a later date, the municip
resolution or ordinance, the applicant will be deemed ineligible for the Class 8 Incentive, whether or not
construction has begun. In all circumstances, the resolution must be submitted by the time the applicant
files an

I, the undersigned, certify that I have read this Application and that the statements set forth in this
Application and in the attachments hereto are true and correct, except as those matters stated to be on
information and belief and as to such matters the undersigned certifies that he/she believes the same to be

____________________________________
Print Name Title

*Note:  If title to the property is held in trust or by a corporation or a partnership, this Class 8 Eligibility Application must be signed by a beneficiary,
officer or general partner.











































emurtaugh
Rounded Exhibit Stamp



 

 

 
Date: July 20, 2021 

To: Committee of the Whole 

Cc: Dave Niemeyer, Village Manager 

From: Hannah Lipman, Assistant to the Village Manager  

Subject: Electrical Aggregation Program Renewal Changes 
 

As previously discussed with the Board, there have been several changes presented to the 
Village in regards to the electric aggregation program.  
 
 
Our consultant has received final pricing and presented the following one (1) year options:  

Recommendation 
If green energy isn’t a priority, staff recommends either staying with MC2 to receive a 
$42,000 Civic Contribution, or switching to Eligo to receive a $70,304 Civic Contribution. 
 
If taking advantage of green energy is a priority, staff recommends electing Eligo at 50% 
green energy (non-EPA Green Partner Community designation), in addition to a $53,062 
Civic Contribution.  

Interoffice   
Memo 
 



 

 
 
 
Date: July 16, 2021   
 
To: Committee of the Whole 
   
From: David Niemeyer, Village Manager 
 
cc: Pat Carr, Assistant Village Manager 
 Angela Arrigo, Human Resources Director 
 Paul O’Grady, Village Attorney 
 Patrick Connelly, Village Attorney 
 
Subject: Dual Capacity Employment 
  
 
On the Board consent agenda are two requests to waive Section 2.11 of the personnel 
code prohibiting an employee from holding 2 different postions. This is a very unusual 
requirement in my opinion, but the Board can waive it as it has in the past.  
 
The two requests are as follows: 
 

• Colby Zemaitis was recently promoted to Assistant Public Works Director. He is 
also holding the title of Village Engineer until we hire a new Village Engineer. 

 
• Roxanne Tysen currently serves as commission secretary for a couple of 

commissions. We previously discussed getting the Clerk’s Office part-time clerical 
help as we did not replace the full-time FOIA coordinator position. We interviewed 
Roaxanne and she has the skills to fill the position. Her total hours with the Village 
will not exceed 1000 hours per year so she will not receive IMRF or insurance 
benefits. 

Interoffice   

Memo 



 

 
 
Date: July 15, 2021 
 
To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director 
   
From: Joe Fitzpatrick, Water & Sewer Superintendent 
 
Subject: Hydrant Painting Project Bid Award 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Presented for Committee of the Whole and Village Board discussion and action. 

Description:  The Village paints fire hydrants throughout town every year.  We painted approximately 
600 hydrants per year previously, making this an eight-year program to paint every hydrant.  We have 
increased the number of hydrants to paint to 1,200. The program will now be four years long. 

Background:   The hydrant painting project was advertised to prospective bidders on June 24, 2021 
with a public bid opening on July 12, 2021.  The Village received the following three (3) bids with the 
Deputy Clerk and Water & Sewer Superintendent from the Village present. 

Contractor: Location: Bid: 
Cryder Enterprises Minooka, IL $99,600 
Capital Industrial Coatings Hammond, IN $186,900 
Lankford Construction Co. Tinley Park, IL $192,000 
 
Budget/ Finance:  Funding in the amount of $99,600 is available in approved FY2022 Budget. 
 
 Budgeted Amount $108,000 
 Bid Amount $99,600 
 Under Budget $8,400 
 
Staff Direction Request:  Approve a contract with Cryder Enterprises to paint fire hydrants in the 
amount of $99,600. 
 
Attachments: 

1) Bid Tabulation 
2) Letter of Recommendation 
3) Service Contract 

 

Interoffice   

Memo 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
July 15, 2021 
 
 
Village of Tinley Park 
Department of Public Works  
7980 W. 183rd Street 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 
 
Attention:   Joe Fitzpatrick 
  Water & Sewer Superintendent 
 
Subject:  2021 Fire Hydrant Painting Program 
  Bid Results  
  (CBBEL Project No. 160373.00023) 

 
 
Dear Mr. Fitzpatrick, 
 
On Monday, July 12th, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. bids were received and opened for the 2021 
Fire Hydrant Painting Program. The project consists of abrasive blasting and painting 
existing fire hydrants throughout the Village.  Three bids were received for this project 
and the results have been reviewed and tabulated below. 
 

CONTRACTOR BID PROPOSAL 

Engineer’s Estimate $114,000.00 

Cryder Enterprises, Inc. $  99,600.00 
Capital Industrial Coatings, 
LLC $186,900.00 

Lankford Construction Co. $192,000.00 
 
Cryder Enterprises, Inc. is the low bidder with a bid amount of $99,600.00. We have 
reviewed Cryder Enterprises’ bid document and find it to be in order. Cryder Enterprises 
has successfully completed previous projects for the Village of similar size and scope.  
 
Therefore, we recommend awarding the 2021 Fire Hydrant Painting Program to Cryder 
Enterprises in the amount of $99,600.00.  
 



  

The bid tabulation has been enclosed for your reference. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Alex Schaefer, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Enclosure as Noted 
 
cc:  Ken Howard – Tinley Park Public Works 

Andrew Pufundt – CBBEL 
  

 
N:\TINLEYPARK\160373\160373.00023\Admin\Bidding\LOR.071521.Docx 

 



Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd.
9575 West Higgins Road, Suite 600
Rosemont, Illinois 60018

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
2021 FIRE HYDRANT PAINTING PROGRAM
(CBBEL PROJECT NO. 160373.00023)

BID SUMMARY
BID OPENING DATE: JULY 12, 2021

BIDDER BASE BID
1 ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE 114,000.00$                    
2 CRYDER ENTERPRISES, INC. 99,600.00$                       
3 CAPITAL INDUSTRIAL COATINGS, LLC 186,900.00$                    
4 LANKFORD CONSTRUCTION CO. 192,000.00$                    

N:\TINLEYPARK\160373\160373.00023\Admin\Bidding\Bid Tabulation.xlsx



Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd.
9575 West Higgins Road, Suite 600
Rosemont, Illinois 60018

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
2021 FIRE HYDRANT PAINTING PROGRAM
(CBBEL PROJECT NO. 160373.00023)

BID TABULATION 
BID OPENING DATE: JULY 12, 2021

ITEM NO ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE
1 ABRASIVE BLASTING AND PAINTING OF FIRE HYDRANTS EACH 1,200 95.00$               114,000.00$     83.00$               99,600.00$       155.75$             186,900.00$     160.00$             192,000.00$     

TOTAL = 114,000.00$     TOTAL = 99,600.00$       TOTAL = 186,900.00$     TOTAL = 192,000.00$     

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE CRYDER ENTERPRISES, INC. CAPITAL INDUSTRIAL 
COATINGS, LLC

LANKFORD CONSTRUCTION 
CO. 

N:\TINLEYPARK\160373\160373.00023\Admin\Bidding\Bid Tabulation.xlsx



99,600.00



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 

SERVICE CONTRACT 

This contract is by and between the Village of Tinley Park, an Illinois home-rule municipal 
corporation (the “Village”), and                                                     (the “Contractor”), for the project 
or work described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

1. In consideration of the compensation stated in paragraph 2, the Contractor shall provide all
the services described in the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
incorporated herein by reference.  The express terms of this Contract shall take precedence
and control over any term or provision of the Scope of Services (Exhibit A) that in any way
conflicts with, differs from, or attempts to alter the terms of this Contract.

2. Except in the event of a duly authorized change order approved by the Village as provided
in this Contract, and in consideration of the Contractor’s final completion of all work in
conformity with this Contract, the Village shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed
__________________________________________ and 00/100 Dollars ($$$,$$$.$$).
Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion of the work, the Contractor shall submit his
application for payment to the Village, and the Village shall pay Contractor for the work
performed no later than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the Village's receipt and
the Village’s approval of the work and the application for payment.  No payment shall be
made by the Village until the Contractor has submitted to the Village (i) a Contractor’s
Affidavit listing all subcontractors and material suppliers utilized on the project and (ii) final
waivers of lien from the Contractor, all subcontractors and all material suppliers.

3. No changes shall be made, nor will invoices for changes, alterations, modifications,
deviations, or extra work or services be recognized or paid except upon the prior written
order from authorized personnel of the Village.  The Contractor shall not execute change
orders on behalf of the Village or otherwise alter the financial scope of the Project.

4. Written change orders may be approved by the Village Manager or his designee provided
that the change order does not increase the amount set forth in paragraph 2 of this Contract
to more than $10,000.00.  Changes in excess of this amount must be approved by the Village
Board prior to commencement of the services or work. If a requested change causes an
increase or decrease in the cost of or time required for the performance of the
contract, Contractor will agree to an equitable adjustment in the contract price or
performance schedule, or both.  Neither party is obligated to comply with requested
changes unless and until both parties execute a written change order.

5. Time is of the essence on this Contract.  The Contractor shall complete all work under this
Contract by the dates set forth below:

Substantial completion by April 1, 2022 and project closeout by April 30, 2022 

6. No “Notice to Proceed” may be given nor any work commenced until this Contract is fully
executed and all exhibits and other attachments are completely filled out and attached hereto.

7. It is understood and agreed by the parties that the Contractor is an independent contractor
retained for the above-mentioned purpose.  The Village shall not control the manner nor
the means of the Contractor's performance, but shall be entitled to a work product as
described herein.  The term "subcontractor" shall mean and include only those hired by and

Cryder Enterprises, Inc.

Ninety-Nine Thousand Six Hundred



having a direct contract with Contractor for performance of work on the Project.  The 
Village shall have no responsibility to any subcontractor employed by a Contractor for 
performance of work on the Project, and all subcontractors and material suppliers shall 
look exclusively to the Contractor for any payments due.  The Village will not be 
responsible for reporting or paying employment taxes or other similar levies that may be 
required by the United States Internal Revenue Service or other State or Federal agencies. 
Every subcontractor shall be bound by the terms and provisions of this Contract as far as 
applicable to their work.  The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Village for the 
acts and omissions of its subcontractors, and shall ensure that any subcontractors perform 
in accordance with the requirements of this Contract.  Nothing contained herein shall create 
any contractual or employment relations between any subcontractor and the Village.  The 
Contractor is solely responsible for the safety procedures, programs and methods of its 
employees and agents and shall hold the Village harmless for any and all damages resulting 
from violations thereof.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, State and 
local safety laws and regulations. 

 
8. It is further agreed that the Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the 

Village, its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, 
damages, causes of action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of 
litigation, court costs, and attorneys’ fees, for injury to or death of any person or for 
damage to any property arising out of or in connection with the Contractor’s negligence 
under this Contract.   

 
9. The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder 

and hereby releases, relinquishes, and discharges the Village, its officers, agents, and 
employees from all claims, demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, 
including the cost of defense thereof, for any injury to or death of any person and any 
loss of or damage to any property that is caused by, alleged to be caused by, arising out 
of, or in connection with the Contractor's  negligence in its work to be performed 
hereunder.  The Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage in an amount and from 
a carrier suitable to the Village, and the Village shall be named as an additional insured 
where required.  Certificates of Insurance are attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 
10. The Village is exempt from payment of state and local sales and use of taxes on labor and 

materials incorporated into the project.  If necessary, it is the Contractor's responsibility to 
obtain a sales tax permit, resale certificate, and exemption certificate that shall enable the 
Contractor to buy any materials to be incorporated into the project and then resale the 
aforementioned materials to the Village without paying the tax on the materials at the time 
of purchase.  In no event will the Village be liable for or pay any sales or use taxes incurred 
by the Contractor in performing the services under this contract. 

 
11. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, 

regulations, ordinances, and other laws, including but not limited to the Immigration 
Reform and Control Act (IRCA).  The Contractor may not knowingly obtain the labor or 
services of an unauthorized alien.  The Contractor, not the Village, must verify eligibility 
for employment as required by IRCA. 

 
12. At any time, the Village may terminate this Contract for convenience, upon written notice to 

the Contractor.  The Contractor shall cease work immediately upon receipt of such notice.  
The Contractor shall be compensated for services performed and accepted by the Village up 
to the date of termination. 

 



13. No waiver or deferral by either party of any term or condition of this Contract shall be 
deemed or construed to be a waiver or deferral of any other term or condition or subsequent 
wavier or deferral of the same term or condition. 

 
14. This Contract may only be amended by written instrument approved and executed by the 

parties. 
 
15. This Contract and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by the 

Contractor without the prior written approval of Village. 
 
16. The parties hereby state that they have read and understand the terms of this Contract and 

hereby agree to the conditions contained herein. 
 
17. This Contract has been made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.  

The parties agree that performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Cook County, 
Illinois. 

 
18. Contractor, its employees, associates or subcontractors shall perform all the work hereunder.  

Contractor agrees that all of its associates, employees, or subcontractors who work on this 
Project shall be fully qualified and competent to do the work described hereunder.  Contractor 
shall undertake the work and complete it in a timely manner. 

 
19. If any provision of this Contract shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, 

the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable.  If a court of competent 
jurisdiction finds that any provision of this Contract is invalid or unenforceable, but that by 
limiting such provision it may become valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be 
deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited. 

 
20. This Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Village and 

Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral.   

 
21. This Contract will be effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the 

Contract fully executed. 
 
22. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, if the work to be 

performed under this Contract is covered by said Act. 
 

23. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Illinois Substance Abuse Prevention on Public 
Works Projects Act. 













 

 
 
Date: July 16, 2021 
 
To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director 
   
From: Joe Fitzpatrick, Water & Sewer Superintendent 
 
Subject: Replace Pumps at Post 3 (7350 175th Street) Lift Station  
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Presented for Committee of the Whole and Village Board discussion and action. 
 
Description:  Replace two (2) jockey pumps at Post 3 storm water lift station.  The three (3) storm 
pumps will remain. 
 
Background:  When the control panel and other electrical work was completed at Post 3 last year, the 
two (2) jockey pumps were pulled for inspection.  Upon inspection, the pump housings have begun to 
deteriorate beyond the point of repair. Replacing the pumps now, will avoid costly emergency pump 
replacement when complete pump failure occurs.  Sole source purchase and install is requested 
based on quality of work Superior Pumping Services provides the Village.  Superior Pumping Services 
is the contractor we use for needed repairs when components in lift stations and pumping stations fail.  
Superior Pumping Services has been used exclusively for over 4 years.  The contractor is able to 
provide quality work while keeping costs lower than other companies offering the same services.  
Superior Pumping Services has become very familiar with the Village’s stations and our needs.   
 
Contractor: Location: Quote: 
Superior Pumping Services Hobart, IN $21,739.70 
 
Budget/ Finance:  Funding in the amount of $21,739.70 is available in the approved FY2022 Budget.  
 
 Budgeted Amount $64,000.00 
 Quote Amount $21,739.70 
 Under Budget $42,260.30 
 
Staff Direction Request:  Approve the sole source purchase and installation of pumps in the amount 
of $21,739.70. 
 
Attachments: 

1) Quote for pumps and installation of two (2) pumps at Post 3. 

Interoffice   

Memo 



ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT 

Superior Pumping Services 
227 Hemlock Ct 
Hobart, IN 46342 US 
jknezevich@superiorpumpingservices.com 

 
 

Estimate 
ADDRESS 
Village of Tinley Park 
16250 S. Oak Park Ave 
Tinley Park, Il 60477 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ESTIMATE # 1257 
DATE 01/18/2021 

 
 

 

PO 
storm 

 
 
 

Station Rehab 
Remove old discharge piping and one pump. install all new SCH 80 PVC. 
Install new 4 x 4 flygt base elbow with SS guide rail and upper brackets. 
removal 
Flygt  4" volute Submersible pump equipped with a 230 Volt / 3 phase / 60 Hz 
5 HP 1750 RPM motor, 463 impeller, 1 x 50 Ft. length of SUBCAB 4G4+2x1,5 
submersible cable, FLS leakage detector, volute is prepared for Flush Valve 
customer is responsible for bagging station off and vactoring station clean. 

2 10,869.85 21,739.70

 
 
 

TOTAL $21,739.70 
 
 

Accepted By Accepted Date 

mailto:jknezevich@superiorpumpingservices.com






 

 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 


	072021 615 pm Spec Committee of the Whole Notice
	072021 Cow Agenda
	Item #2 -  062921 Cow Minutes draft
	Item #3 -  Petes Redevelopment Agreement
	Item #4 -  Aspen Class 8 167th St.
	Item #5 -  Mira RE Class 8 Mira - Prosperi Dr.
	Item #6 -  Electrical Aggregation Program
	Item #7 -  Dual Capacity
	Item #8 -  Hydrant Painting
	Item #9 -  Post 3 Lift Station
	Item #10 -  SCBA #21-104 Air One MSA Air Bottles_071321
	Item #11 -  Public Comment
	Item #12 -  Adjournment



